
United Nat ions 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY-FOURTH SESSION 

Of!icial Records * 

SPECIAL POLITICAL Cm<TMITTEE 
16th meeting 

held on 
Wednesday, 31 October 1979 

at 10.30 a.m. 
New York 

Sm,1JVTARY RECORD OF THE 16th MEETING UN lfqQ-\RY 

NOV 1 q 1979 

UN/SA (0LL:CTION 
Chairman: Mr. EL-CHOUFI (Syrian Arab Republic) 

CONTENTS 

AGENDA ITEM 48: INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATION IN THE PEACEFUL USES OF OUTER SPACE 
(continued) 

AGENDA ITEM t~9: PREPARATION OF AN INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION ON PRINCIPLES GOVERNING 
THE USE BY STATES OF ARTIFICIAL EARTH SATELLITES FOR DIRECT TELEVISION BROADCASTING 
(continued) 

• This record is subJect to correction. Corrections should be sent under the 
signature ,fa member of the delegatwn concerned within one week of the date of 
publication :o the Chief of the Official Records Editmg Section, room A-3550, 
866 Umted Nations Plaza (Alcoa Building), and incorporated in a copy of the 
record. 

Cmrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee. 

79-57973 

Distr. GENERAL 

A/SPC/34/SR.l6 
13 November 1979 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: FRENCH 

/ ... 



A/SPC/34/SR.l6 
English 
Page 2 

The meeting was called to order at 10.55 a.m. 

AGEHDA ITEM 48: INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATION IN THT>: PEACEFUL USES OF OUT~R 
SPACE (continued) 

AGEIJDA ITEM 49: PREPARATION OF AH INTERNATIONAL COI'lVErTTION ON PRINCIPLES 
GOVERNING THE USE BY STATES OF ARTIFICIAL EARTH SATELLITES FOR DIRECT TELEVISION 
BROADCASTH~G (continued) (A/34/20; A/SPC/3Lr/L .10 to 12) 

l. The CHAiill1AN dre>v- the attention of the Committee to the three draft --------
resolutions, tabled as documents A/SPC/34/L.lO, L.ll and L.l2 respectively. 

2. !1r. BARTON (Canada) welcomed the central role played by the United Nations, 
through the Committee for the Peacefu} 1 ises of Outer Snace, in the formulation 
of policies in an area uhere, in order to keep pace 1vi th developments. the 
technological impact of' new discoveries had to be anticipated, that is, the 
future had to be dealt with. It was only through co--operation among nations 
that it would be possible to succeed in doing so, in the spirit of the 1967 
Treaty on the Exploration and Use of Outer Space, ~Vhich proclaimed outer space 
as the province of all mankind. 

3. He briefly reviewed some Canadian space activities during the year: a pilot 
project for direct-to-home television broadcasting, the first anywhere, using a 
communications satellite developed in Canada, ANIK-B, pilot projects in 
telemedicine and tele-education, demonstrations of low-pm-rer direct broadcastine; 
and telephony trials in Australia using the joint Canadian-American communications 
Hermes satellite, utilization of the LANDSAT programme, signing of a memorandum 
of understanding with France and the United States for the establishment of an 
experimental satellite-aided search and rescue project (SARSAT). in which the 
USSR would also be participatinr,, and conclusion of a co-onerative a::;reement with 
the European Space Agency. 

4. Turnin,"': to the report of the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space 
(A/34/20), he said that the nast year had been a relatively productive one and 
that progress had been made in several important areas, although in other areas 
there had been no movement. 

5. In remote sensinp, no progress had been achieved in discussions on the 
classification and disser;1ination of data, althour:h the develoninr: countries had 
accepted a Canadian proposal for the preparation of a catalogue on the 
applications of remote sensing technology. ElseHhere, Canada, which had prepared 
a new draft set of principles in collaboration ~Vith S~Veden to regulate direct 
·broadcasting by satellite, regretted that the draft had not achieved a consensus 
and that progress in the area remained blocked. Canada was certain soon to have 
an operational direct-to-home satellite television broadcasting service and it 
vras essential for the body of principles governing that field to be completed 
without de lay. 

/ ... 



A/SPC/3h/SR.lh 
English 
Pa,";e 3 

(Hr. Barton, Canada_) 

6. On a number of issues, ho1-rever, the Committee had made considerable -prorrress, 
particularly in the use of nuclear pm1er sources in outer space. The experts 
of the l'lorkinp; Group approved by the Comrni ttee the previous year had exchanp;ed 
useful technical information and reached preli~inary conclusions on the conditions 
for safe use of such power sources. Since much 1-rork remained to be done,, the 
Group had recommended stuoies in selected aspects of the subject be undertaken 
and that a second session be held. The Committee on th~? PPaceful Uses of Outer 
Space had endorsed the recommendation and Canada too strongly supported it. The 
Committee Lad demonstrated its usefulness as machinery for the nre-paration of 
policies responsive to technoloc:ical innovation, and should be congratulated on 
havins taken a decision to begin discussion of the various lep;al asnects of the 
issue. 

7. He noted with satisfaction that the Com:rnittee had finally completed the 
draftinc; of a Hoon Treaty, which reiterated the principle laid down in the 1967 
Treaty on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space that the moon and other celestial 
bodies would be used exclusively for peaceful purposes. The draft Treatv vould 
explicitly prohibit any threat or use of force, and -vrould Bean that the benefits 
derived from the exploitation of the resources of celestial bodies woulo be 
equitably shared by all parties~ An international regime reflectin~ the 
principle of the common herita~e of mankind -vrould be established when exnloitation 
of those resources became possible. His country would sunnort the draft 
resolution on the Moon Treaty and hoped it would be supported by a large number 
of countries. Given the heavy 1-rorldoad auaitinr; it in the next fe1-r years, the 
Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space 1-ras recommending that the second 
United Hations Conference on the Exploration and Peaceful UsPs of Outer Space be 
held late in 1982. Its purpose would be to provide all HembPr States of the 
United Nations, in particular the developing countries, with the onportunity to 
become familiar vith space technoloe;y. The preparatory process, especially the 
regional seminars which -vrould focus on the needs of the developinp; countries" 
would be of great importance. His deleo;ation honed that all Eember States Hould 
actively support the recommendations contained in the draft resolution on the 
Conference. 

8. On the need to re--examine the Committee 1 s structure and operations,. he 
considered it a useful exercise for the latter to reappraise its activities and 
he hoped that the discussion on that matter would be continued in the months to 
come. 

9. He cone;ratulated the exnert on space applications and the officers of the 
United Nations pro~ramme on the very useful work they had done despite the 
programme's very limited budget. 

10. In conclusion, he indicated that his delAR;ation -vmuld co-sponsor the omnibus 
resolution on the peaceful uses of outer space, the rosolution on the Outer 
Sr<J.ce Conference, and the draft Agreement g;overnin,o; the Activities of States on 
the :1oon and other Celestial Bodies? 1-rhich 1wuld be submitted to the Special 
Political Conooittee by the representative of Austria. 

/ ... 



A/SPC/34/SR.l6 
English 
Page 4 

11. r1~~_!2}ITA (Japan) said that the year 1979 had been a very successful year 
for space exploration and for the peaceful uses of outer space. 'l'he United 
States had achieved remarkable results with the mission of Pionef'r II to Saturn, 
as had the Soviet Union, ''hose cosmonauts had spent a record tiT'le in spacP. 
OthAr countriP.s, too, had registered sir;ni ficant successes. In thP. ne,,r era that 
1vas davminr:;, international co~operation would be more essential than ever. 

12. For its part, Japan had launched an experi~ental communications satellite 
ancl a scientific satellite and was >mrkinr; tmvards the launchinrr of other 
vehicles, includin~ a marine observation satellite (MOS~l), two corrillunications 
satellites ( CS0-2a and CS-2b), a geostationary r:;eological satellite ( Gl1S-2) and 
an experimental communications satellite (ECS-b). A r,round station built by 
thP. National Space Development A(!,f"ncy of Japan •vas in full operation and vTas 
receiving from LANDSAT telemetered data \·Thich it was providinr- to numerous users. 

13. Turninr; to the report of the Comv1i ttee on the Peaceful UsPs of Outer Space 
(A/34/20), he expressed his satisfaction vrith the results achieved. He shared 
the satisfaction expressed by other delegations aoout the draft Ap,reement 
governinrr the Activities of States on the Hoon and other Celestial Bodies, the 
text of which was to be subm1tted to the General Assembly for consideration and 
final adoption durine; its current session. In the opinion of his delPgation, 
it was one of the most sie;nificant achievPments of the Comiilittee since 1q74, "\vhen 
it had completed the draft Convention on the Registration of Objects Launched 
into Outer Space, one of the four international instruments on outer space already 
in force. It was a source of satisfaction to his dele~ation that the Corrmittee 
had, with commendable assistance from the Le~al Sub-Committee, once again shown 
proof of its active contribution by completing the draft Ae;reement in such a 
brief space of time. It contained a number of important principles, which would 
be legally bindinp; and 1vould be effective in promotinr; e;reater co-operation amone; 
States for further progress in the exploration and use of outer snacr:- for 
peaceful purposes~ It was his delegation's earnest hope, therefore, that it 
vrould be unanimously approved by the General Assembly. 

14. Another area in which the Co~~ittee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space had 
made considerable progress ~-Tas in preparation for the second United nations 
conferPnce on the exploration and peaceful uses of outer space. Both by 
fosterinc space science and technology and by promoting international co--operation, 
the conference would brine; great benefit to all participatin(! countries, and 
particularly to developine; countries. 'Ihe Committee, in its capacity as tl1P 
preparatory committee for tho conference, had held numerous discussions which 
had resulted in detailed proposals and recommendations for the title, agenda, 
time and venue of the cc,nference, as vrell as its Preparation and orp,anize>,tion 
(A/Jl>/20, paras. Stf-115). His dele~ation endorsecl the Committee 1 s recomrrtendations, 
and hoped that the General Assembly would apnrove th!'>m unanimously. 

15. Turning to remote sensing of the earth by satellite, his dPle~ation noted 
that the Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee had been unable to resolve 
certain l\:ey issues, such as the classification and disserr1ination of primary data 
and the establishment of a panel of experts on remote sensing. His delPgation 
had some difficulty in a,";reeing to a classification of primary data, as it was 

/ ... 



A/SPC/'34/RR.l6 
English 
Page ·:, 

(l1r. Fu.lita, Japcm_) 

not fully convinced of the need for such a classification, nor of the technical 
basis on <vhich it would be carried out. Furthermore, it was convinced that the 
unrestricted use of the information obtained was the best lvay to ensure maximum 
benefit from such activities, and therefore found it difficult to accept the idea 
that the dissemination of such data reauired the consent of the sensed State. 
The purpose of developinc; remote sensin~ technoloe;y was to use it more vTidely 
for the benefit of all mankind. The lec;al implications of the problem had been 
actively discussed at the previous session of the Sub-Committee, but a number of 
crucial issues remained unresolved. On those issues too, Japan maintained the 
view that remote sensing activities should not require consent, as they did not 
involve the acquisition by the sensine; State of natural resources belonGin~ to 
the sensed State, and tLerefore could not be construed as a violation of the 
latter 1 s sovereignty. Needless to say, any State party to the 1967 Outer Space 
Treaty \·rhich was conducting activities in outer space was bound to inform_ the 
Secretary-General of the United Nations, as well as the international scientific 
community and the public at lar~e, of the results of its activities. 

16. ~Tith regard to direct television broadcastinp; by satellite, detailed 
discussions had taken place at the previous session of the Legal Sub~Committee 
on the text of the draft principles elaborated so far, as well as on the version 
jointly proposed by Canada and Sweden. 'I'h:- differences of views amon,c;: delegations 
had blocked a consensus on the l\:ey draft principle, entitled ''Consultations and 
agreement;;. That Has perhaps unfortunate, but it was common knowledge that the 
problem faced by the Legal Sub-Committee lay at the very heart of the contentious 
issues involved in international direct television broadcasting services. Indeed, 
his delegation had been encouraged by the constructive and intensive nature of 
the Sub-ConMittee's discussions. For its own part, his delegation had repeatedly 
expressed its view that the problem at issue, one of the most difficult 
outstanding problems connected with direct television broadcasting services by 
artificial satellite specifically directed at a. foreign State, could only be 
resolved on the basis of the so~called 11consultation formula:', and not on the 
basis of the nprior consent formula". Taking into account the provisions of the 
relevant instruments of the International Telecommunication Union and other 
pertinent factors, his delep;ation still believed that the best way to solve that 
highly delicate problem was throup;h full consultations between the parties 
directly concerned, with due regard to the draft principles ap;reed upon. It 
fully supported the Committee's recommendation that at its next session, the 
Lec;al Sub-Committee should continue to deal as a matter of nriority with the 
elaboration of the draft principles. His delegation hoped that the Sub-Committee 
would make real progress in that direction, takinp; full account of the discussions 
>Vhich had tal,en place on the subject of the Canadian-Swedish proposal and other 
proposals submitted at the previous session. 

17. Fith regard to the section of the report entitled :'Pro.csramme and activities 
of the United I1Tations relating to outer space n, his delegation appreciated the 
important role of the United Nations programme on space applications, particularly 
in the field of remote sensing for the benefit of developinp; countries. He 
therefore hoped that the prograrc1me for l9r30, as proposed by the United Nations 
expert to the previous session of the ,Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee, 

/ ... 



A/SPC/34/SR.l6 
Ent~lish 
Page 6 

(~l[r. Fujita, Japan) 

would be endorsedo In that respect, he wisl1Pd to add that the Jancm International 
Co--operation Agency had -been conducting trainin.q; pro{l"rammes on rf>T110te sensing for 
specialists from the ESCAP re~ion, the most rf>cent of l·rhich had been held in 
August. 

13. He vrould like to cow.ment briefly on the use of nuclear pm-rer sources in 
outer space and thP activitiPs of the lJorkin,~ Group \·rhich had been established 
by the Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee at its last session to consider 
the technical aspects and safety measures rf'lating to thP use of nuclear nm-rf'r 
sources in outer space. In its report (A/AC.l05/23fl, annex II), the Forkin"" 
Group concluded that nuclear povrPr source-c; could be used safely in outer space, 
provided certain safety considerations outlined in the report were met i'l full. 
Naturally) it had been unable to complPte consideration of that difficult 
question at its first session, which had lasted only a ;;.;eek it had a{':reed that 
further studies should be made on four subject areas, and had called for 
contribution's by interested MPmber States and international ae;encies. His 
delegation fully supported thP recommendation that the 1Torking Group should mePt 
for one week during the next session of the Sub-ConLmittF>e. It also welcomed 
the decision of the Co1nmittee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space to recomraend 
that the Legal Sub-Committee should include in the a~enda for its next session 
an item entitled 71 Revie1-r of <?xistinp: international laH relevant to outer space 
activities 1-rith a viE\-T to determinine; the appropriateness of supnlementinf\ such 
law with provisions relating to the uses of nuclear pmrer sources in out""r sDace". 
In that connexion, the Secretary-General of the United ~Jations had recently 
invited Hember States to submit their views concernin,g; existin~ international 
lavr relevant to outer space activities, as recommended by the Committee in 
paragraph 52 of its report. His dele':Sation hoped that as many Member States as 
possible would corrununicate their views to the Secretary-General. His delegation 
was convinced that f'fforts aimed at further develoning space activities, vrhile 
reducinc; to a minimum the risl~s involved, would require the widest -possible 
support and understandinp:. The valuable work tormrds that end which had been 
done during the year by the Outer Space Affairs Division of the Secretariat •-ras 
sincerely aprreciated. 

19. l1r. BOYADJILV ( Bulp;aria) said that he would like to con,a;ratulate the 
Chairman of the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space, the Chairmen of 
the tvro Sub-Committees and the Rapporteur on the 1vork that had been accomplished. 
The year 1979 had been particularly fruitful in space activities for Bulc,aria. 
The country 1 s participation in the "'Intercosmos n programmP had been further 
expanded, based on the principles of fraternal co-operation and mutual assistance. 
'I'he Bul;;arian space pror,rar,lffie vras particularly concerned •-ri th the manufacture 
of special equipment for use in outer space, which had been installed on board 
almost all Intercosrnos satellites launched since 1972 0 and almost all ,o;eophysical 
rockets in the :.Vertital · series. On the basis of those achievements, Bul,a;aria 
had become the eighteenth member of the family of space States, according to the 
United Nations classification system. Bulc,arian scientists were continuin,a; their 
active participation in such international pron;rammes as 11Bil'\ Chord 11

• "'Dynamics 11
, 

and ·'Atmosphere''. Bulo;arian space sciPntists were Particularly proud of the 
record-breakinf, l75~day space flight of the Soviet cosmonauts, Vladimir Lyakhov 

I ... 



A/SPC/34/SR.H':: 
Enr;lish 
Parse 7 

(lvir. Boyadj iev, Bulgaria) 

and Valery Ryumin, aboard the Salyut-6. Four Bulgarian experiments and one 
Soviet-Bulc;arian experiment had been carried out durinc: the mission. 

20. A number of basic Pxperiments and other valuable observations of the earth 
had been carried out through remote sensing of the earth with the Bulcarian 
"Spectrum 15" camera. The Bulgarian-Soviet ';Pirin11 experiments illustrate the 
continuins development of Bulgarian chemistry, physics and metalloc:raphy. 'I'he 
Soviet cosmonauts had also conducted a series of experiments in space medicine -vrith 
the help of the Bulgarian "Sredetz" equipment for fJS~rc~10~physiolo:::;ical research. 
For the People 1 s Republic of Bulgaria, which was noH engaged in an intensive 
proc:ramme of space research to mark the 1300th anniversary of the creation of the 
Bul;;arian State highlic;hted by the launching of a new satellite in the 7'Intercosmos" 
series, the Bulgaria 1300, 10 April 1979 would be enshrined in letters of gold. 
That was the date of the flight of the first Bulgarian cosmonaut aboard the 
Soyuz 33 space ship, accompanied by the Soviet cosmonaut, l'Til-;:ulai Roukavishnikov. 
His delegation wished to express its gratitude to the Soviet Union and its people, 
without 1-rhose fraternal and selfless assistance that rernarl;:able flight could not 
have been made. The People's Republic of Bulgaria was also developing its 
bilateral co-operation in space research with many other countries: India, Greece, 
the Federal Republic of Germany, the United States, Italy, etc. On the occasion 
of the recent tenth anniversary of the lalli:~hing of the first Intercosmos 
satellite, his delegation wished to thank Cuba, Hungary, llongolia, Poland, the 
German Democratic Republic, Romania, Czechoslovakia, the Soviet Union and Viet ~Jam 

for their participation in the launching of the t1ventieth satellite. 

21. His delegation noted ~-Tith satisfaction that, after eight years of efforts and 
as a result of the constructive approach of a number of delegations, the Co:ramittee 
on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space had been able to work out the final draft of 
a treaty on the moon and other celestial bodies. The main task now, as called for 
in paragraph 66 of the Committee's report (document A/34/20), was for the General 
Assembly to, at its current session, approve the draft Agreement governing the 
Activities of States on the 1\loon and other Celestial Bodies and open it for 
signature. 

22. His delegation considered it very important for all States to become parties 
to existing international agreements in the field of outer space. As many as 
possible States should accede to the four major conventions regulating the peaceful 
uses of outer space in the interest of all countries and for the benefit of mankincl 
which had laid the foundation for a just legal order in that field. The 
1967 Treaty, for instance, was a basic instrument of space law; it had been 
recognized for 12 years but it had been ratified by only slightly more than half 
the Member States of the United Nations. It -vras high time that the Committee on 
the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space and its Lec;al Sub-CoiTLmittee examined that 
situation and identified ways of inducing all States to accede to all the agreements 
novr in force. 

23. The Outer Space Committee, as the Preparatory Committee for the Second United 
:Nations Conference on the Exploration and Peaceful Uses of Outer Space pursuant to 

; ... 



A/SPC/34/SR.l6 
English 
Parse 8 

(l-Ir. Boyad.liev, Bulgaria) 

paragraph 10 of General Assembly resolution 33/16, had done constructive vork. The 
a0enda proposed for the Conference included, as it shou~d, both scientific and 
technological questions and questions of global significance. His delee;ation 
supported the Soviet proposal made at the sixteenth session of the Scientific and 
Technical Sub-Committee and reiterated at the twenty-second session of the Outer 
Space Committee, that the Conference should be held in lJJoscmv. 

24. His delec;ation attached major importance to the elaboration of principles 
vhich would guarantee that States used artificial earth satellites for direct 
television broadcastinc in the interests of peace, mutual understanding and 
co-operation amonc; States. The use of such satellites must comply fully with the 
generally accepted principles of international lavr, namely respect for the 
sovereignty of States and non-interference in their internal affairs, as well as 
with article 6 of the Treaty on Principles Governing the Activities of States ln 

the L:xploration and Use of Outer Space, includinr; the Moon and otLer Celestial 
Bodies. 

25. Hith regard to remote sensing of the earth by satellites, his country, as a 
party to the Convention on the Transfer and Use of ~ata Obtained by Remote 
Sensing of the Earth from Outer Space, signed on 19 i-1ay 1978 in Hoscovr, vras using 
remote sensing method3 to solve specific problems. That Convention could serve as 
a basis for the draft inc; of the relevant rules, especially vri th regard to data 
classification and dissemination. The lecal frame~>rork for remote sensing of the 
earth vras defined by the principle of the inalienable sovereienty of States over 
their natural resources. 

26. The question of the definition and delimitation of outer space, vrhich also 
involved the question of the geostationary orbit, should be resolved on the basis 
of the vrorldng paper (A/AC.l05/L.ll2) submitted by the Soviet delegation to the 
tventy-second session 0f the Guter 2pC'_ce Committee, -vrhich contained draft provisions 
for a resolution by the General "',ssenbly on those two issues. 

26a. His delegation hoped that the Special Political Committee uould adopt 
unanimously a resolution aimed at creating the necessary political and 
organizational conditions for the Cowmittee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space 
and its Sub-COHt1ittees to be able to vrorl~ effectively. His country stood for a 
peaceful cosmos, and for international co-operation in the exploration and 
exploitation of outer space so that advances in knowledge could serve all mankind. 

27. Hr. DOLLING ( Svreden) recalled that 1979 marked the tenth anniversary of the 
landing of the American Apollo XI astronauts on the rr.con. Althou~h outer space 
activities had become increasingly concentrated on the practical uses of space 
technology, the scientific investigation and exploration of outer space and the 
earth's solar systen1 continued, as was evidenced by the Pioneer expeditions and by 
the endurance records for manned space flishts by the creHs of Salyut-6. His 
deler;ation was pleased that the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space had 
at last been able to submit to the General Assembly the final text of an agreement 
on the moon and other celestial bodies. The Dost imfortant principle established 

/ ... 



A/SPC/34/SR.l6 
English 
Pae:;e 9 

(IIr. Dollinl!. S1reden) 

by that ac;reement vras the recor;nition that the natural resources of the moon and 
other celestial bodies \vere the common heritage of mankind and that an 
international regime should be established to govern the exploitation of those 
resources. 'The ap;reement also prohibited the militarization of the moon and other 
celestial bodies and the use of force against them or in respect of orbits around 
them and trajectories to them. His delegation va.s in favour of the adoption by 
the General P..ssembly of the proposed text for an a?reement p:overning the 
activities of E.~tates on the moon and other celestial bodies. 

28. In 1978, the special session devoted to disarmament had agreed that measures 
should be taken to prevent an arms race in outer space. It seemed appropriate 
to ask what had been done to follmr up that recommendation. The growing importance 
of space tec:hnolocY for all countries in telecommunications, earth resources 
management, etc., made it imperative for the international community to demand 
that measures be taken to maintain outer space as a domain of peaceful development 
and international co-operation. He understood that the two n1ajor space Powers 
were discussing the prohibition of so-called anti-satellite systens. That vas to 
be '.Telcomed as a first step, but it should be noted that the internatlonal 
community as a whole had an obvious right and responsibility to participate in 
the formulation of measures concerning disarman1ent in outer space. ~he 1967 Treaty 
prohibited the placement of weapons of mass destruction in outer space, but it 
also emphasized that space activities should be carried,out in the interest of 
maintaining international security and promotine; international co-operation 
and understandine;. In that connexion, his delegation ~trelcomed the proposal made 
by the Italian delegation to the Committee on Disarmament, and noted with interest 
that a group of experts had been asl<::ed to study the implications of the 
establishment of an international satellite agency for the monitoring of arms 
control, disarmament agreements and crisis areas. 

29. His delegation hoped that the new international space organization, the 
International llaritime Satellite Organization (IITHPJ\SAT), established in 
,July 1979 >wuld soon overcome the initial difficulties that it had encountered, 
so that it could start its ~trorlc without further delay. 

30. Sueden's space budget had been increased substantially and the financial 
resources allocated to space activities Hould be approximately doubled over the 
next few years. Sweden vas a member of the :Curcpean Space Agency and co-operated 
1vith a number of countries in the scientific and t~chnological field. It believed 
that the main purpose of the Second United Nations Conference on the Exploration 
and Peaceful Uses of Outer Space should be to stimulate a vider use of space 
techniques and to increase the possibilities for a sreater number of countries 
to enjoy the benefits of space technology, ~iving the highest priority to the 
special problems of developing countries. In that context, the Conference should 
be considered as a follOI,r-up to the United Nations Conference on Science and 
Technology for Development and should lead to the adoption of concrete measures 
to strengthen the capacity of countries to make use of space technology. The 
competent specialized agencies should be invited to take an active part in the 
preparatory work and in the Conference itself. His delegation welcomed and 
supported the reco~nendations of the Outer Space ConEittee on the agenda 9 

preparations and organization of the Conference, and its recow~endation that the 
Conference should be held in the second half of 1982. 

/ ... 



A/SPC/34/SR.l6 
English 
Page 10 

(I1r. Dolling, Sweden) 

31. At the most recent session of the Legal Sub-Co:rnmittee, 81-reden and Canada had 
presented a 0 clean text 11 of the principles which should govern the use of 
articial earth satellites for direct television broadcasting in an effort to 
arrive at a final compromise. Unfortunately, it had not been possible to reach an 
a("reement, but he hoped that it vrould be possible to do so when the Sub-Committee 
met in 1980. 

32. ldith rec;ard to remote sensin~ of the earth by satellite, which was bein5': 
discussed by both the Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee and the Legal 
Sub-Committee, his delegation believed that all aspects of that question should 
continue to be studied. International co-operation, perhaps through an 
international agency and giving all countries an opportunity to participate in 
remote sensing activities, vras the best way to ensure that the benefits of that 
technology 1vere shared by all and to avoid possible abuses. The risk of growing 
inequality bet1veen States vrith different levels of economic and technological 
development must be avoided. Remote sensing data should therefore be as freely 
accessible as rossible in order to prevent the graving dominance of sensing States. 
The developinc; countries should be provided 1vi th adequate assistance so that they 
could interpret and make use of such data, and the United nations Space 
Applications Programme should be strengthened to meet that need. 

33. His delegation was gratified by the outcome of the first meeting of the 
Harking Group established by the Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee to study 
technical aspects and safety problems related to the use of nuclear power sources 
in outer space. It was also pleased that the Legal Sub-Committee would be 
eHtbarking on a review of existing space laws the following year with a view to 
determining the need for supplementary legal provisions for the use of nuclear 
povrer sources. 

34. His delegation attached great importance to the equitable access of all 
countries to the geostationary satellite orbit. ITU played a vital role in that 
connexion, in that it provided machinery which regulated the functional use of the 
geostationary orbit and of radio frequencies. That machinery was based on the 
principle that the orbit must be used efficiently and economically so that all 
countries or groups of countries had equitable access to it. The question of the 
geostationary orbit had also been raised at the World Administrative Radio 
Conference (HARC) which was nmv taking place in Geneva. 

35. Mr. CARAZO (Venezuela) observed that significant progress had been made in two 
areas. The first \vas the draft Agreement governing the Activities of States on 
the Moon and Other Celestial Bodies, contained in annex II to the report of the 
Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space. His delegation believed that, 
although it did not cover every eventuality as exhaustively as an agreement of that 
nature should, the text of the draft Agreement was none the less balanced. It 
supported the draft and believed that it should be opened for signature as soon as 
possible. 

The other area in vrhich progress had been made was that of preparations for 
the Second United nations Conference on the Exploration and Peaceful Uses of Outer 

I . .. 



( ' T 1-r. 

A/SPC/34/SR.l6 
English 
Pa?;e 11 

Carazo, Venezuela) 

Space, to "1-I!tich he attached particular importance. In his view, the provisional 
agenda proposed for the Conference was satisfactory to the developing countriPs, 
His country hoped that consideration of the ite!D. entitled "Applications of 
space science and technoloc;y" 1wuld take into account the interests of countries 
ullich, vithout embarldno; on ambitious space prosrammes, vi shed to acquire nev 
space teclmoloc:y in order to apply it to development. The Conference should 
therefore give priority to questions of interest to the developing countries and 
not content itself 1vith evaluatinc the proo;ress l!lac-;.e at the technical and le,:3al 
level over the past 14 years. The Conference sl:.ould aim to strengthPn international 
co-operation in all areas amon13 all States, and betvreen States and international 
and governmental organizations. 

36. Hith re{~ard to remote sensing of the earth by satellites, his delegation 
believed that remote sensing activities should be open to participation by the 
largest possible number of countries, and that the developing countries should 
receive the l1ecessary assistance in that area. At the legal level, the draft 
principles governing remote sensing must respect the sovereign rifhts of States 
anc'. not undermine the principle of non-interference. The oissemination of remote 
sensing data must be subject to the prior consent of the sensed State, uhich not 
only had a say in monitoring the use of the data obtained but also had priority 
access to them. His delec:ation was particularly concerned that governments and 
transnational corporations might be able to use information about developing 
countries 1 natural resources~ ':vhich had been obtained by remote sensing improperly, 
:i,n 'v"io::',-.::':,i, 21 of the principle of the _permanent sovereie;nty of States over their 
natural resources. The draft principles [?;overning remote sensing of the earth 
should therefore include rules on data collection, processing and dissen1ination. 

37. 'l'he fonmlation of principles governing the use by States of artificial earth 
satellites for direct television broadcasting had made little proe;ress) and must 
be given priority at the next session of the Legal Sub-Committee. His country 
advocated the free and balanced exchange of information and believed that any 
future rules governing direct television broadcasting by satellite must respect 
the sovereignty and cultural identity of States. 

38. His delegation shared the concern expressed by some other delegations with 
regard to the use of the geostationary orbit for purposes of definin8 or delimiting 
outer space. It recognized that all States had a right to enjoy the benefits to be 
gained from the use of that orbit on the basis of rules -vrhich would dispel the 
prevailinr, confusion on the subject. 

39. He believed that the Corr~ittee should continue to study the question of the 
use of nuclear povrer sources in outer space. He supported the activities of the 
Harking Group on that subject, in particular its study of the effects of 
radiation on populations and the environment and of methods for improving the 
forecasting of re-entry phenomena. In that connexion, the Comn1ittee on the 
Peaceful Uses of Outer Space should have mentioned in its report the proposal, made 
by the Italian deleGation to the Committee on Disarmament that an additional 
protocol should be added to the 1967 Treaty on Principles Governing the Activities 
of States in the Bxploration and Use of Outer Space, including the Moon and Other 
Celestial Bodies. 

I ... 



A/SPC/34/SH.l6 
English 
Page 12 

(Mr. Carazo, Venezuela) 

40. In view of the hurricanes which had recently devastated the Caribbean region, 
his delegation also attached great importance to the forecasting of natural 
disasters and had given close consideration to the report of the World 
Meteorological Organization on its tropical cyclone project (A/AC.l05/245). 

41. He wished to thank the Chairman of the Outer Space Committee and the 
Chairmen of the Scientific and Technical Sul!-Cor:mittee and the Lee;al Sub-Committee 
for their valuable work. His delegation supported draft resolutions A/SPC/34/L.lO, 
L.ll and 1.12 and hoped that they would be adopted by consensus. 

42. Hrs. NOWOTNY (Austria) said that her country had always considered the 
United l'Jations, and in particular the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer 
Space, to be the most appropriate forums through which to channel and 
institutionalize international co-operation in space activities. The Outer 
Space Committee had been instrumental in the elaboration of legal principles 
governing outer space activities and in the further development of legal norms 
governing the manifold aspects of the peaceful uses of outer space. At its 
most recent session, the Committee had been able, on the basis of the 1mrk of 
the Legal Sub-Committee, to complete the elaboration of the draft Agreement 
governing the Activities of States on the !loon and other Celestial Bodies, its 
most important step in the codification of international outer space law. 
As a result of such an agreement, the use of the natural resources of celestial 
bodies and outer space, which might relieve some of the immense pressures now 
facing manl:ind due to the limited resources of the earth, could take place in a 
predominantly peaceful environment, in an orderly fashion, in accordance with 
international law, on the basis of international co-operation and mutual 
understanding and in accordance with previously agreed procedures. Only in those 
circumstances would the lvhole of mankind be able to benefit therefrom., 

43. Her delegation fully endorsed the detailed recommendations on the organization 
and agenda of the Second United Nations Conference on the Exploration and Peaceful 
Uses of Outer Space. Given the attitude of the general public, one of the 
first objectives of the Conference must be to change the public's ideas about 
space activities and to better acquaint it with space technology and its 
applications, the space environment and the wide range of possibilities which it 
offered. The Conference should also review the present state of space science 
and its future possibilities, with special.focus on the benefits which countries 
without. highly sophisticated technologies might derive therefrom. It was obvious 
that such a review could best be made at global level with the participation 
of all countries, both suppliers and users, and of the relevant international 
institutions and agencies. 

44. now that mankind ~Vas able to conduct regular flights into orbit and set up 
large structures in space for manufacturing or research purposes and the number 
of communication and sensing satellites was constantly increasing, the problem 
of protecting the earth in the case of uncontrolled re-entry of space objects 
into the atmosphere was becoming particularly acute. The Committee and its hTO 

Sub-Committees had addressed themselves to the question of the safety of outer 
space activities and had produced some tangible results. At its next session, 

I ... 



A/SPC/34/SR.l6 
English 
Page 13 

( Hrs. Nowotny, Austria) 

the Legal Sub--Committee would include in its agenda a new item entitled "Revie•rr 
of existing international law relevant to outer space activities with a view to 
determining the appropriateness of supplementing such la-vr with provisions relating 
to the use of nuclear power sources in outer space>~. Her delegation trusted 
that the ensuing discussion would contribute to the safety of future space 
operations. 

45. Her delegation was disappointed that the Committee had not reached agreement 
on a set of draft principles governing the use by States of artificial earth 
satellites for direct television broadcasting. In her view, the proposals 
submitted by the Swedish and Canadian delega~ions constituted a constructive 
approach which should enable the Legal Sub-Committee to resolve the question 
when it took it up again. 

46. With regard to remote sensing of the earth, her delegation hoped that the 
discussions in the Scientific and Technical Sub-Committee and the Legal 
Sub~Committee at the forthcoming session would make it possible to narrow still 
further the areas of divergent views. 

47. Her delegation was prepared to take a flexible attitude with regard to the 
matter of the definition and delirr.i tat ion of outer srace, and -vrould be in a 
position to join in any consensus 1-Jhich might develop. At the same time, it 
should not be forgotten that the issue -vras linked to the question of the use of 
the geostationary orbit. In that regard, and taking into account the ever-_ 
increasing number of satellites, her delegation shared the view of those which 
urgecl nore thorough consideration of the optimal utilization of, and equal 
access ~o" the geostationary orbit, with a view to formulating understandings to 
ensure the most efficient and economical means of using that orbit. 

48. Analysis of the last three issues she had mentioned made it clear that only 
limited progress had been made: the points which remained unresolved were the 
most difficult ones, where the positions of various States were the most pronounced 
and the most divergent. Her delegation felt that States should no-vr demonstrate 
the political will to surmount narrowly defined national positions and reach 
compromise solutions which would be generally acceptable. 

49. In vie1·r of the rapid development of spa;::e science and technology and the 
growing number of countries participating in those developments, there was an 
increasing need for international regulation in the field. It was therefore 
imperative that the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space should reach 
agreement on several outstanding issues. Space technology, uhich by its nature 
surpassed national boundaries, clearly showed that supranational problems called 
for supranational solutions. Only vi thin the frame-vrorl;: of the United nations -vrould 
it be possible to ensure utilization of space science and technology for the 
benefit of all States. 

50. On behalf of the sponsors, her delegation introduced three draft resolutions 
in documents A/34/SPC/L.lO, A/34/SPC/1.11 and A/34/SPC/1.12. The first draft 
resolution (A/34/SPC/1.10), entitled 11 International co-operation in the peaceful 
uses of outer space 1

', focused on the worl;: done by the Committee on the Peaceful 

I ... 



A/SPC/34/SR.l6 
:Gngli s11 
Page 14 

(I·lrs. Nmmtny ., Austria) 

Uses of Outer Space and its two Sub~Comrnittees, and rene1ved t"Qeir mandate for 
the follmring year. Draft resolution A/SPC/34/L.ll related to the preparation 
and organization of the second United nations Conference on tl:<.e Exnloration and 
Peaceful Uses of Outer Space. Finally, draft resolution A/SPC/311/1.12 dealt 
vith the draft agreement t;overning the activities of States on the moon and 
other celestial bodies, the text of 1vhich had been completed by the Comrni ttee 
on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space durine; its tventy-second session. She 
announced that Ireland had become a sponsor of draft resolutions A/SPC/31~/1.10 
and A/SPC/311/L. ll, and that Nigeria had become a sponsor of the t.hree draft 
resolutions A/SPC/34/L.lO, A/SFC/34/L.ll and A/SPC/34/1.12. 

51. llr. IPSARIDES (Cyprus) said that his delegation wished to express its 
appre-ciation to the Chairman of the Committee on the Peaceful Uses of Outer Space 
and the Chairmen of the two Sub-Committees for their valuable work. It also 
wished to congratulate Argentina and India on their space programmes, and to 
emphasize tile great importance attached by his country to the further development 
of the Soviet Il'TTERCOSMOS programme and to th? space achievements of the United 
States. 

52. His delegation expressed its profound satisfaction -vrith the conclusion by 
the Cormnittee of the draft agreement governing the activities of States on the 
moon and other celestial bodies. Adoption of that draft agreement bv the General 
Assembly uould enable the international community to uevelop the natural resources 
Of celestial bodies in accordance Hith an international regime, for the benefit 
of all manl:ind. 

53. The Question of the peaceful uses of outer space not only posed scientific 
technical and legal problems, but also made manl:ind aware of the need to infuse 
a ne1·1 spirit into human relations and to reduce differences and tension among 
nations. 

54. His delegation unconditionally sup1Jorted draft resolution A/SPC/3h/L.ll on 
remote sensing of the earth, and hoped that the Legal Sub--Committee vould hasten 
its work on the elaboration of draft principles to govern remote sending 
activities. Hith regard to the legal imrJlications of remote sensing, his 
delegation reiterated its vie-vr that the sovereignty of the sensed State over 
its natural resources must be respected, and that the sensed State must have 
continuous access, on a priority basis, to the data and information obtained by 
tlle sensing State. 

55. His delegation considered that there I·Jas a pressing need to reach a£':reement 
on regulations to ensure safety with regard to the use of nuclear povrer sources 
in outer space and supported the recommendations of the hro Sub~Commi ttees on 
the subject. 

56. In his delegation's view, the geostationary orbit should be used in a 
rational and judicious ~anner, and a satisfactory regime should be established 
for its use. It therefore supported the idea of the definition and delimitation 
of outer space. 

The meeting rose at 12.40 p.m. 


